## **Minutes**

## PETITION HEARING - CABINET MEMBER FOR SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HOUSING



30 April 2012

## Meeting held at Committee Room 3 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

	Committee Members Present: Councillors Philip Corthorne LBH Officers Present: Ed Shaylor - ASB & Investigations Service Manager, Sharon Townsend – Head of Disability & Mental Health Services, Grant Walker - Senior Management Housing Maintenance Services Manager and Gill Brice – Democratic Services			
Also Present: Steven Watson – Director of Positive Community Care, Jennifer Lewis, Ach Chudasama				
3.	I KINGS ROAD, UXBRIDGE (Agenda Item 3)	Action by		
	Councillors Keith Burrows, Judith Cooper and David Routledge attended as a Ward Councillors.	Ed Shaylor Sharon Townsend		
	Concerns, comments and suggestions raised at the meeting included the following:	Gill Brice		
	<ul> <li>There had been issues with the property being used as a supported unit since last August.</li> <li>There was no evidence that a risk assessment had been undertaken.</li> </ul>			
	<ul> <li>Residents had not been consulted about the use.</li> <li>The unit was a semi-detached property and as adjoining neighbour had been disturbed on regular occasions both day and night.</li> </ul>			
	<ul> <li>There had been a number of incidents encountered that had been reported and</li> <li>Noise disturbance had been reported to the Anti Social</li> </ul>			
	<ul><li>Behaviour Team.</li><li>As a result of the incidents one of the residents had been moved</li></ul>			
	<ul> <li>from the unit.</li> <li>There had been continuing issues in the community even though the resident that was thought to be causing the problems had been moved.</li> </ul>			
	<ul> <li>Noise diaries had been submitted to the Anti Social Behaviour Team.</li> </ul>			
	<ul> <li>Mill House had been contacted about residents concerns but so far no response received. A letter had now been sent and a reply was awaited.</li> </ul>			
	<ul> <li>Residents fully understand the need for people with mental health issues to live in the community but had concerns that they were being given a higher priority than local residents.</li> </ul>			

•	Residents felt that their Human Rights were being impacted	
	upon by the use.	
•	The wider situation had not been taken in to consideration.	
•	Positive Community Care had a supported housing unit in a	
	property in Hayes, which had caused serious Anti Social	
	Behaviour issues.	
•	Suggested outcome for the short term was for the person	
	causing the problems to be re-assessed, as it was not felt their	
	needs were being met.	
•	Suggested long term outcome would be for the unit to be closed.	
•	The process for supported housing units needed to be looked at	
	to see whether semi-detached properties were suitable for this	
	type of use.	
A Wa	d Councillor spoke and raised the following points:	
	Understand the problems that were occurring and could not add	
•	too much to what the petitioner had already said.	
•	Residents had attended the Ward surgery to seek help in	
_	resolving the issues they were facing.	
•	There needed to be a holistic approach to resolve the problems	
	being encountered by residents.	
•	There needed to be measures put in place 24 hours a day with	
	emergency contact numbers given to residents to report any	
	issues.	
•	A monitoring regime needed to be put in place by the Council.	
•	A risk assessment was a fundamental part of the process and if	
	not already carried out should be undertaken in the future.	
•	Residents needed to be provided with constructive help.	
•	Had received regular e-mails from residents on the noise and	
	disturbance that they were suffering.	
•	Premises that were to be used as supported housing units	
	should require planning consent, which would mean that	
	neighbours would be consulted.	
•	There was an urgent need to rectify the problem, as a semi-	
	detached property was not ideal for this type of use.	
•	Local residents living close to the unit need a quality of life.	
•	Recognise that people with mental health issues have to adapt to live in the wider community.	
	to live in the wider community.	
Cound	cillor Philip Corthorne listened to the concerns of the petitioners	
and re	esponded to the points raised:	
	abinet Member advised that the supported housing unit was run	
	endently of the Council. The Council did not have the power to	
	the unit as legal proceedings would need to be instigated and a on made by the Courts. At this stage there was insufficient	
	nce to go down the closure route. Work had already taken place	
	olve the issues being encountered by residents but there was	
	n opportunity for further work to be undertaken. It was the	
	nsibility of the organisation to bring the current issues being	
	enced by residents to a satisfactory resolution.	
	,,,	

	The Cabinet Member advised the meeting that he was going to defer making a decision until further discussions had been undertaken.	
	The Cabinet added an additional recommendation to request officers, Central North West London NHS Foundation Trust and Positive Community Care to meet and discuss further measures that could be put in place. Once this had been done a report would be prepared and submitted to the Cabinet Member for his consideration. The Cabinet member would then discuss the options put forward with Ward Councillors. Once this had all been completed all parties concerned would be informed of the outcome.	
	Reasons for recommendation	
	Council officers have been working with the management company and the lead petitioner since August 2011 with the intention of improving the situation.	
	Alternative Options Considered	
	Due to the mental capacity of the residents it was felt that direct action against individual residents, such as issuing a noise abatement notice or building a case for an Anti Social Behaviour Order would not be proportionate or appropriate.	
	Resolved - That the Cabinet Member:	
	<ol> <li>Noted the views of the petitioners</li> <li>Advised that the supported housing unit was run by a company which was independent of the Council</li> <li>Noted that Council Anti-Social Behaviour Investigations Team (ASBIT) officers had advised the management company to investigate improvements or changes to reduce the impact on neighbouring residents</li> <li>Discussed with petitioners whether the improvements made by the management company were sufficient.</li> <li>Listened to petitioners representations with regard to the closure of the premises and advised accordingly.</li> <li>Asked officer's to meet with Central North West London NHS Foundation Trust and Positive Community Care to discuss what further measures could be put in place to resolve the issues highlighted.</li> <li>Officers to report back to the Cabinet Member with the outcome of their discussions in 4 weeks to enable Ward Councillors to be consulted on what further steps may be appropriate.</li> </ol>	
4.	SKEFFINGTON COURT, HAYES (Agenda Item 4)	Action by
	Councillors Lynne Allen and Peter Curling attended as a Ward Councillors.	Grant Walker Gill Brice
	Concerns, comments and suggestions raised at the meeting included the following:	

	Not all residents interested in receiving Arabic channels were able to attend the meeting this evening.	
	A satellite dish to receive Sky TV had been installed by Council. The new dish would enable the children to learn about their culture.	
A Wa	rd Councillor spoke and raised the following points:	
•	There were a number of young mums who lived in Skeffington Court with children at home. English is not their first language of a number of the residents in	
•	Skeffington Court. Would allow them to keep in touch with the current affairs of	
•	their own country. There may be a deal to be done with the suppliers of Hot Bird, which could include provision to other blocks in the borough.	
	cillor Philip Corthorne listened to the concerns of the petitioners esponded to the points raised:	
to the There	Cabinet Member advised the petitioners that he was sympathetic request, which would be a positive thing to do for our residents. would need to be further consideration given as to how this	
Cabir provis decis	be logically done across all the estates in the borough. The net Member advised the meeting that he would discuss how the sion of the Hot Bird satellite could be taken forward and make a ion within the next 5 to 10 days. The petitioners would be notified a Cabinet Members decision at that time.	
Cabir provis decis of the	net Member advised the meeting that he would discuss how the sion of the Hot Bird satellite could be taken forward and make a sion within the next 5 to 10 days. The petitioners would be notified	
Cabir provis decis of the <b>Reas</b> To all	net Member advised the meeting that he would discuss how the sion of the Hot Bird satellite could be taken forward and make a ion within the next 5 to 10 days. The petitioners would be notified cabinet Members decision at that time.	
Cabir provis decis of the <b>Reas</b> To all and to	<ul> <li>Member advised the meeting that he would discuss how the sion of the Hot Bird satellite could be taken forward and make a ion within the next 5 to 10 days. The petitioners would be notified a Cabinet Members decision at that time.</li> <li>ons for recommendation</li> <li>ow the Cabinet Member to hear the concerns of the petitioners</li> </ul>	
Cabir provis decis of the <b>Reas</b> To all and to <b>Alter</b> The C instru	<ul> <li>bet Member advised the meeting that he would discuss how the sion of the Hot Bird satellite could be taken forward and make a ion within the next 5 to 10 days. The petitioners would be notified a Cabinet Members decision at that time.</li> <li><b>ons for recommendation</b></li> <li>ow the Cabinet Member to hear the concerns of the petitioners of consider whether to agree to their request or otherwise.</li> </ul>	
Cabir provis decis of the <b>Reas</b> To all and to <b>Alter</b> The C instru or cho	<ul> <li>bet Member advised the meeting that he would discuss how the sion of the Hot Bird satellite could be taken forward and make a ion within the next 5 to 10 days. The petitioners would be notified a Cabinet Members decision at that time.</li> <li><b>ons for recommendation</b></li> <li>ow the Cabinet Member to hear the concerns of the petitioners of consider whether to agree to their request or otherwise.</li> <li><b>native options considered / risk management</b></li> <li>Cabinet Member could agree to the request of the petitioners and ct officers to install this new satellite dish to the existing system,</li> </ul>	
Cabir provis decis of the <b>Reas</b> To all and to <b>Alter</b> The C instru or cho <b>Reso</b>	<ul> <li>and Member advised the meeting that he would discuss how the sion of the Hot Bird satellite could be taken forward and make a ion within the next 5 to 10 days. The petitioners would be notified a Cabinet Members decision at that time.</li> <li><b>ons for recommendation</b></li> <li>ow the Cabinet Member to hear the concerns of the petitioners of consider whether to agree to their request or otherwise.</li> <li><b>native options considered / risk management</b></li> <li>Cabinet Member could agree to the request of the petitioners and ct officers to install this new satellite dish to the existing system, bose to refuse the request.</li> </ul>	

how this can be tal relation to cost and	decision to discuss further with officer's ken forward across other estates in d other possible requirements. The lead d Councillors would be notified of the e next 5 – 10 days.
Addendum to Decision –	31 May 2012
	le at the meeting, the Cabinet Member has formation from officers and has made the
That the Cabinet Member	
on the block Skeffington Co by the Council. The petitio who want to use this additi	titioners to have an additional satellite dish ourt. This is conditional on it being installed ners, and any other residents in the block onal facility, will be required to pay the e satellite dish and associated equipment to ir homes.
The meeting, which comme	enced at 7.00 pm., closed at 7.55 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Gill Brice on 01895 250693. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.